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AGENCY NAME: South Carolina Department of Health & Environmental Control
AGENCY CODE: 1040 34

Environmental Affairs

Permit Central: During FY2013, Permit Central responded to 306 calls, 221 emails, and held 134 meetings.
Between the last half of 2013 and the first half of 2014, Permit Central services nearly tripled.

UST Quality Assurance Program Plan: On July 1, 2011, the Underground Storage Tanks (UST) Program began
implementing the Quality Assurance Program Plan (QAPP). As of June 30, 2014, 32 contractors have approved
ACQAPs and 31 have been requested or are under review. Between July 1, 2013, and June 30, 2014, 1,269
reviews of QAPP Addendums and SSWPs were completed.

UST Operator Training During this fiscal year, 488 new A/B operators were trained in SC. Retraining is another
requirement for operator training. Of the 3,803 inspections performed this past year, approximately 31%
involved retraining (1,190 retraining events). The majority of these took place at the time of the inspection.

Air Quality Improvements: The air quality in SC continues to improve even as the National Ambient Air Quality
Standards (NAAQS) for the six criteria pollutants (ozone, nitrogen dioxide particulate matter, lead, carbon
monoxide, and sulfur dioxide) become more stringent.

The Clean Air Act requires the science upon which the NAAQS are based, as well as the standards themselves, to
be reviewed every five years. Recommendations for possible changes to this standard and its associated rule
making will be released in December of 2014. While more protective of human health and the environment,
these more stringent standards will be a challenge for many states across the country to meet. If standards
become stricter, SC may see some areas of the state designated as non-attainment with the standards in the
future.

Surface Water Permitting: S.C. Regulation 61-119 (Surface Water Withdrawal, Permitting and Reporting)
established implementation procedures for a new permitting program for large surface water withdrawals.
DHEC issued 197 permits for all existing surface water withdrawers.

Public Health

Access to Care: Increasing access to care is a top priority for DHEC. To improve access to care, DHEC has
completed an evaluation of core clinical services and identified areas of greatest need for operational
improvements.

Obesity: In 2013, two out of three adults and nearly one in three children in SC were overweight or obese. In
2014, the agency mobilized key stakeholders from across the state to develop a five-year state Obesity Action
Plan.

Insurance and AIDS Drug Assistance Program (ADAP): The goal of the ADAP program is to provide cost-effective
access to HIV medications to people living with HIV/AIDS. As existing ADAP clients are able to purchase
insurance, ADAP is able to pay for premiums, co-payments, and deductibles. In calendar year 2012, more than
4,700 people received ADAP services. By moving these clients onto insurance, there is a cost savings of §225 per
month per client. As of August 2014 of this year, the program has moved 320 clients to the insurance program.



AGENCY NAME: South Carolina Department of Health & Environmental Control
AGENCcY CODE: J040 34

S.C. Tobacco Quitline:. As of 2013, based on the most recent quit rate of 29.4%, an estimated 11,777 South
Carolinians (tobacco users only) have quit smoking or using other tobacco products, thus, saving SC
approximately $33.2 million in tobacco-related direct healthcare costs.

Infant Mortality, Low Birth Weight, and Prematurity: SC has reduced its infant mortality rate, but the state’s
rate (7.6 deaths per 1,000 live births in 2012) continues to be substantially higher than the US infant mortality
rate (6.1 deaths per 1,000 live births in 2011). SC’s higher infant mortality rate is largely due to a higher rate of
premature and low-birth-weight births. In October of 2013, DHEC released a comprehensive infant mortality
reduction plan for SC that focuses on evidence-based programs targeted at reducing SC’s leading causes of
death: prematurity, low-birth-weight births, birth defects, and Sudden Infant Death Syndrome (SIDS). Birth
defects continue to be the leading cause of infant mortality in SC. Newborn metabolic screening is an important
tool in the early identification and appropriate treatment of birth defects. In early 2014, DHEC entered into a
quality improvement partnership with the SC Hospital Association to improve the turnaround time for the
receipt and testing of newborn screening specimens. In March 2014, the DHEC lab began reading newborn
screening test results on Saturdays and state holidays to help expedite turnaround times even more.

Women, Infant, and Children (WIC) EBT: There is a federal mandate to convert the paper food voucher to an
Electronic Benefit Transfer (EBT) delivery by October 1, 2020. Over the long term, the new system will improve
customer service, the quality of the information DHEC receives, and will allow for greater accountability.

Technology Access: The agency still utilizes a paper-based medical record system. Efforts are underway to
identify what is needed to replace the paper-based system and to secure an electronic health record system for
all client services, including service provision in the county health departments and community settings.

PMP (Prescription Monitoring Program): The agency’s Bureau of Drug Control maintains South Carolina’s
prescription monitoring program, which is known as SCRIPTS (SC Reporting and Identification Prescription
Tracking System). This program collects information on controlled substance (CII-CIV) prescriptions dispensed in
SC and has been in place since 2008. The agency is in the process of assessing a means to acquire analytic
services and/or products to work with SCRIPTS data to expand the capacity to develop predictive models, and to
detect anomalies in prescriber patterns and patient prescription behaviors.

! Calculations are based on a $2,820 cost per smoker in direct healthcare costs in S.C. Source: Centers for Disease Control
and Prevention. (2002). Annual Smoking-Attributable Mortality, Years of Potential Life Lost, and Economic Costs — United
States, 1995-1999, MMWR 51(14):300-03.
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Department of Health and Environmental Control
2015-2016 Budget Request Summary in Priority Order

State Funds

Program Title Program Description Recurring State
Pinewood This funding request addresses operation, maintenance and $3,981,000
Hazardous Waste | monitoring activities (OM&M) at the former Pinewood
Landfill Commercial Hazardous Waste Landfill site. In 2000 the

owner/operator entered into bankruptcy and ceased all
operations. This site is currently in post-closure care. Most
costs are highly dependent upon variables such as repairs and
replacement parts, offsite disposal facility acceptance fees
and surcharges, transportation fuel costs, change in leachate
concentrations and waste generation rate.

The bankruptcy settlement established a trust fund to finance
closure of the site, and an annual annuity for post-closure
care of the site for a 100 year period. For OM&M activities at
the site are approximately $4,891,988. The annuity will
provide between $958,028 and $1,066,956 per year over the
next five years. Currently, the trust fund balance is
$4,214,033. However; because of the variability of these
expenses, the current balance will not completely support
site operations past 2015. Without another source of funding
the operations, maintenance and monitoring activities costs
cannot be fully funded over the remainder of the post-closure

care period.
Hazardous Waste | This funding request addresses operations, maintenance and $750,000
and Above monitoring activities at hazardous waste sites. Most of the
Ground Storage costs associated with remediation of these sites are highly
Tanks dependent upon variables such as repairs and replacement

parties, offsite disposal facility acceptance fees and
surcharges, transportation fuel costs, change in leachate
concentrations and waste generation rates. We are
requesting $500,000 rgcurring funds for the Hazardous Waste
Contingency Fund for the Brewer site.

Above Ground Storage Tanks.

There are currently 169 petroleum releases from unregulated
AST’s that are not covered. While most have Responsible
Parties, it is probable that 62 of these sites will default
resulting in $7.4 M one-time cost to the state. We are not
requesting full funding at this time, but want the General
Assembly to be aware of the possible liability and suggest a
restricted recurring line of $250,000

Total $4,731,000




Department of Health and Environmental Control
2015-2016 Budget Request Summary in Priority Order

State Funds
Non-

Program Title Program Description Recurring State
Information This funding request addresses multiple Information $18,405,550
Technology Infra- | Technology needs of the agency:
Structure Data Governance - $2,490,500

e-Permitting - $7,210,000

Prescription Monitoring Program Replacemen 5_1,425,550 i’

Electronic Health Records - $7$3,950,000 [

Vital Records - $2,349,500

Steton Replacement - $980,000
Total $18,405,550




. 'AGENCY.NAME: Department of Health and Environmental Control
AGENCY CODE: J040 34

FORM B — PROGRAM REVISION REQUEST

DECISION PACKAGE I 3130 ]

Provide the decision package number issued by the PBF system (“Governor’s Request”),

T Realignment of agency appropriation within funding sources
Provide a brief, descriptive title for this request.
AMOUNT [ $0

What is the net change in requested appropriations for FY 2015-16? This amount should
correspond to the decision package’s total in PBF across all funding sources.

General Proviso 117.9 of the FY14-15 Appropriation Act states: “Agencies and
institutions shall be authorized to transfer appropriations within programs and within
the agency with notification to the Executive Budget Office and Comptroller General. No
such transfer may exceed twenty percent of the program budget. Upon request, details
ENABUNG AUTHORITY | of such transfers may be provided to members of the General Assembly on an agency
by agency basis. Transfers of appropriations from personal service accounts to other
operating accounts or from other operating accounts to personal service accounts may
be restricted to any established standard level set by the Budget and Control Board
upon formal approval by a majority of the members of the Budget and Control Board.
What state or federal statutory, regulatory, and/or administrative authority established
this program? Is this decision package prompted by the establishment of or a revision to
that authority?

Mark “X” for all that apply:

(Base Adjustment) Allocation of statewide employee benefits.

X | (Base Adjustment) Realignment within existing programs and lines.

(Base Adjustment) Restructuring of agency programs — requires pre-approval.
Change in cost of providing current services to existing program audience.
Change in case load / enrollment under existing program guidelines.
Non-mandated change in eligibility / enroliment for existing program.
Non-mandated program change in service levels or areas,

Proposed establishment of a new program or initiative.

Loss of federal or other external financial support for existing program.
Exhaustion of fund balances previously used to support program.

FACTORS ASSOCIATED
WITH THE REQUEST

The funds appropriated within the agency’s budget shall be used to administer
statewide programs that promote and support the mission of the agency and benefit
RECIPIENTS OF FUNDS the citizens of South Carolina.

What individuals or entities would receive these funds (contractors, vendors, grantees,
individual beneficiaries, etc.)? How would these funds be allocated - using an existing
formula, through a competitive process, based upon predetermined eligibility criteria?

B-1



AGENCY NAME:

AGENCY CODE:

RELATED REQUEST(S)

MATCHING FUNDS

FUNDING
ALTERNATIVES

SUMMARY

Department of Health and Environmental Control

1040 34

N/A

Is this decision package associated with other decision packages requested by your
agency or other agencies this year? Is it associated with a specific capital or non-
recurring request?

N/A

Would these funds be matched by federal, institutional, philanthropic, or other
resources? If so, identify the source, amount, and terms of the match requirement.

N/A

What other possible funding sources were considered? Could this request be met in
whole or in part with the use of other resources, including fund balances? If so, please
comment on the sustainability of such an approach.

The net changes within fund and programs resulted in the following adjustments to
major commitment items within the agency

General Fund (State Appropriation) changes

From: Classified positions (6836,639) To: Other Personal Services  $836,639
From: Unclassified positions ($240,435) To: Other Personal Services ~ $240,435
From: Employee Benefits (6117,159) To: Other Personal Services ~ $117,159
From: Employee Benefits ($440,931) To: Other Operating $440,931
From: Case Services ( $1,246,056) To: Other Operating $1,246,056
From: Case Services ($1,238) To: Other Operating $ 1238
Net Change ($2,882,458) $2,882,458
Other Fund authorization changes

From: Classified positions ($2,457,871) To: Other Operating $2,457,871
From: Classified positions  ($474,512) To: Fringe Benefits $474,512
From: Other Personai Svcs  ($305,640) To: Qther Operating $305,640
From: Case Services ($6,359,069) To: Other Operating $6,359,069
From: Case Services (62,950,418} To: Allocations $2,950,418
Net Change ($12,547,510) $12,547,510

B-2




AGENCY NAME:
AGENCY CODE:

METHOD OF
CALCULATION

Department of Health and Environmental Control

JO40

SECTION:

34

-

Restricted Fund authorization changes
From: Other Personal Services ($7,449)

From: Other Operating ($23,300)
From: Other Operating (545,570)
Net Change (576,319)

Federal Fund authorization changes
From: Other Operating  ($1,718,806)

From: Case Services {$215,488)
From: Case Services (5254,264)
From: Case Services (5479,949)
Net Change ($2,668,507)

To: Classified Positions
To: Classified Positions

T

[o)

To
To
To
To

: Employee Benefits

: Classified Positions
: Classified Positions
: Other Personal Svcs
: Allocations

$7,449
$23,300

$45,570 |
$76,319

$1,718,806
$215,488
$254,264

$479,949
$2,668,507

Provide a summary of the rationale for the decision package.

Why has it been

requested? How specifically would the requested funds be used? If the request is
related to information security or information technology, explain its relationship to the

agency’s security or technology plan.

Base appropriations adjusted and balanced to actual current budget as of September

2014,

How was the amount of the request calculated? What factors could cause deviations
between the request and the amount that could ultimately be required in order to

perform the underlying work?

B-3



Department of Health and Environmental Control

i AGENCY NAME::
AGENCY. CODE:

040 a4

FUTURE {MPACT

None

Will the state incur any maintenance-of-effort or other obligations by adopting this
decision package? What impact will there be on future capital and/or operating
budgets if this request is or is not honored? Has a source of any such funds been
identified and/or obtained by your agency?

PRIORITIZATION

N/A

If no or insufficient new funds are available in order to meet this need, how would the
agency prefer to proceed? By using fund balances, generating new revenue, cutting
other programs, or deferring action on this request in FY 2015-16?




Department of Health and Environmental Control

AGENCY,NAME:
AGENCY'CODE:

Jo40 34

INTENDED IMPACT

Realignment of authorization levels to minimize the number budget adjustments entries
in future fiscal periods.

What impact is this decision package intended to have on service delivery and program
outcomes, and over what period of time?

PROGRAM
EvALUATION

N/A

How would the use of these funds be evaluated? What specific outcome or performance
measures would be used to assess the effectiveness of this program?




AGENCY NAME: Department of Health and Environmental Control

AGENCY CODE: J040 34

FORM B — PROGRAM REVISION REQUEST

DECISION PACKAGE | 3331 ]
Provide the decision package number issued by the PBF system (“Governor’s Request”).

‘ Distribution of Agency salary and fringe increments

Time

Provide a brief, descriptive title for this request.

AMOUNT | $1,849,672
What is the net change in requested appropriations for FY 2015-16? This amount should
correspond to the decision package’s total in PBF across all funding sources.

ENABLUNG AUTHORITY

What state or federal statutory, regulatory, and/or administrative authority established
this program? Is this decision package prompted by the establishment of or a revision to
that authority?

| Mark “X” for all that apply:

X | (Base Adjustment) Allocation of statewide employee benefits.

(Base Adjustment) Realignment within existing programs and lines.

(Base Adjustment) Restructuring of agency programs — requires pre-approval.
Change in cost of providing current services to existing program audience.
Change in case load / enrollment under existing program guidelines.
Non-mandated change in eligibility / enrollment for existing program.
Non-mandated program change in service levels or areas.

Proposed establishment of a new program or initiative.

Loss of federal or other external financial support for existing program.
Exhaustion of fund balances previously used to support program.

FACTORS ASSOCIATED
WITH THE REQUEST

Subprograms within the agency employing classified positions at the beginning of FY 15,

RECIPIENTS OF FUNDS

What individuals or entities would receive these funds (contractors, vendors, grantees,
individual beneficiaries, etc.)? How would these funds be allocated — using an existing
formula, through a competitive process, based upon predetermined eligibility criteria?

B-1



AGENCY NAME:
AGENCY.CODE: |

RELATED REQUEST(S)

MATCHING FUNDS

FUNDING
ALTERNATIVES

SUMMARY

Department of Health and Environmental Control

iodo Y

N/A

Is this decision package associated with other decision packages requested by your
agency or other agencies this year? Is it associated with a specific capital or non-
recurring request?

N/A

Would these funds be matched by federal, institutional, philanthropic, or other
resources? If so, identify the source, amount, and terms of the match requirement.

N/A

What other possible funding sources were considered? Could this request be met in
whole or in part with the use of other resources, including fund balances? If so, please
comment on the sustainability of such an approach.

The following net adjustments were made to classified positions and employee benefits
accounts within the general fund appropriations.

GENERAL FUND CHANGES

I.  Administration

Classified Positions $95,162
Il.A.2 Water Quality Improvement — Water Management

Classified Positions $44,432
II.LA.3 Water Quality Improvement - Environmental Health

Classified Positions $266,575
11.B Coastal Resource Management

Classified Positions $13,760
I.C Air Quality Improvement

Classified Positions $38,866
I1.D Land and Waste Management

Classified Positions $18,263
1I.E.1 Family Health = Infectious Disease

Classified Positions $84,272
IL.E.2 Family Health — Maternal/Infant Health

Classified Positions $26,476
I.E.3 Family Health — Chronic Disease

Classified Positions $13,320

B-2




AGENCY NAME: Department of Heh Environmental Control
AGENCY CODE: 3040 SECTION:: 34

METHOD OF
CALCULATION

Il.E.4 Family Health — Access to Care
Classified Positions
Il.F.1 Health Care Standards — Radiological Monitoring
Classified Positions
I.F.3 Health Care Standards — Facility Licensing
Classified Positions
I.G.1 Health Surveillance Support-Health Laboratory
Classified Positions
1.G.2 Health Surveillance Support — Vital Records
Classified Positions
lll. Employee Benefits
Employer Contributions

Total Agency Change General Funds

$557,798
$14,320
$28,521
$16,710
$1,644
$629,553

1,849,672

Provide a summary of the rationale for the decision package. Why has it been
requested? How specifically would the requested funds be used? If the request is
related to information security or information technology, explain its relationship to the

agency’s security or technology plan.

Actual increment distribution from Executive Budget Office

B-3

How was the amount of the request calculated? What factors could cause deviations
between the request and the amount that could ultimately be required in order to
perform the underlying work?
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FUTURE IMPACT

None.

Will the state incur any maintenance-of-effort or other obligations by adopting this
decision package? What impact will there be on future capitol and/or operating
budgets if this request is or is not honored? Has a source of any such funds been
identified and/or obtained by your agency?

PRIORITIZATION

N/A

If no or insufficient new funds are available in order to meet this need, how would the
agency prefer to proceed? By using fund balances, generating new revenue, cutting
other programs, or deferring action on this request in FY 2015-16?
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INTENDED IMPACT

Distribution of salary and fringe increments where the costs are to be incurred.

What impact is this decision package intended to have on service delivery and program
outcomes, and over what period of time?

PROGRAM
EVALUATION

N/A

How would the use of these funds be evaluated? What specific outcome or performance
measures would be used to assess the effectiveness of this program?




AGENCY NAME:; Department of Health and Environmental Control
AGENCY CODE: J040 34

FORM B — PROGRAM REVISION REQUEST

DECISION PACKAGE | 4344

Provide the decision package number issued by the PBF system (“Governor’s Request”).

Pinewood Hazardous Waste Landfill
TITLE

Provide a brief, descriptive title for this request.

AMOUNT | $3,981,000

What is the net change in requested appropriations for FY 2015-16? This amount should
correspond to the decision package’s total in PBF across all funding sources.

ENABLING AUTHORITY

What state or federal statutory, regulatory, and/or administrative authority established
this program? Is this decision package prompted by the establishment of or a revision to
that authority?

Mark “X” for all that apply:

(Base Adjustment) Allocation of statewide employee benefits.

(Base Adjustment) Realignment within existing programs and lines.

(Base Adjustment) Restructuring of agency programs — requires pre-approval.
Change in cost of providing current services to existing program audience.
Change in case load / enrollment under existing program guidelines.
Non-mandated change in eligibility / enroliment for existing program.
Non-mandated program change in service levels or areas.

Proposed establishment of a new program or initiative.

Loss of federal or other external financial support for existing program.

X | Exhaustion of fund balances previously used to support program.

FACTORS ASSOCIATED
WITH THE REQUEST

Third party contractor responsible for the operations, maintenance and monitoring of
activities at the Pinewood Commercial Hazardous Waste Landfill site.

RECIPIENTS OF FUNDS

What individuals or entities would receive these funds (contractors, vendors, grantees,
individual beneficiaries, etc.)? How would these funds be allocated — using an existing
formula, through a competitive process, based upon predetermined eligibility criteria?
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AGENCY NAME::
AGENCY.CODE:

RELATED REQUEST(S)

MATCHING FUNDS

FUNDING
ALTERNATIVES

SUMMARY

Department of Health and Environmental Control

ioao a4

N/A

Is this decision package associated with other decision pdckages requested by your
agency or other agencies this year? |Is it associated with a specific capital or non-
recurring request?

N/A

. Would these funds be matched by federal, institutional, philanthropic, or other

resources? If so, identify the source, amount, and terms of the match requirement.

The bankruptcy settlement established a trust fund to finance closure of the site. The
current trust fund balance of $4,214,033 will not completely support site operations
past 2015.

What other possible funding sources were considered? Could this request be met in
whole or in part with the use of other resources, including fund balances? If so, please
comment on the sustainability of such an approach.

This funding request addresses operations, maintenance and monitoring activities at
the former Pinewood Commercial Hazardous Waste Landfill site. In 2000, the
owner/operator entered into bankruptcy and ceased all operations. The site is
currently in post-closure care, which includes the following:

1) an extensive environmental monitoring program,

2) a leachate monitoring system,

3) a collection and treatment system,

4) a stormwater management system,

5) a site security system,

6) site permitting and compliance

7) transportation and disposal of leachate solids,

8) insurance, utilities, taxes, fees and operations-related incidentals.

Most of these costs are highly dependent upon variables such as repairs and
replacement parts, offsite disposal facility acceptance fees and surcharges,
transportation fuel costs, changes in leachate concentrations and waste generation

rates.

The bankruptcy settlement established a trust fund to finance closure of the site, and an
annual annuity for post-closure care of the site for a 100 year period. The average costs
for OM&M at the site are approximately $4,891,988. The annuity will provide between
$958,028 and $1,006,956 per year over the next five years. Currently, the trust fund
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~ AGENCY NAME: i~

AGENCY CODE:

METHOD OF
CALCULATION

Department of Health and Environmental Control

iodo 34

balance is $4,214,033. However; because of the variability of these expenses, the
current balance will not completely support site operations past 2015. Without another
source of funding the operations, maintenance and monitoring activities costs cannot
be fully funded over the remainder of the post-closure care period

Provide a summary of the rationale for the decision package. Why has it been
requested? How specifically would the requested funds be used? If the request is
related to information security or information technology, explain its relationship to the
agency’s security or technology plan.

An independent third party review of the current and projected costs

How was the amount of the request calculated? What factors could cause deviations
between the request and the amount that could ultimately be required in order to

perform the underlying work?
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FUTURE IMPACT

The Department has retained an independent third party to review the current and
projected costs for the remainder of the post-closure period. The current financial
mechanism, and future financial costs associated with post-closure care will be fully
examined and both shart-term and long-term prioritized recommendations for post-
closure care of the site will be identified.

Once this evaluation is complete plans can be implemented taking into account the
current financial, physical and environmental conditions of the landfill. The potential
environmental risks posed by the site can then be identified and prioritized accordingly.

Will the state incur any maintenance-of-effort or other obligations by adopting this
decision package? What impact will there be on future capital and/or operating
budgets if this reguest is or is not honored? Has a source of any such funds been
identified and/or obtained by your agency?

PRIORITIZATION

N/A

If no or insufficient new funds are available in order to meet this need, how would the
agency prefer to proceed? By using fund balances, generating new revenue, cutting
other programs, or deferring action on this request in FY 2015-167




AGENCY. NAME:

INTENDED IMPACT

PROGRAM
EVALUATION

Department of Health and Environmental Control

AGENCY CODE:

1040 34

The intended impact of this request is to provide funding for the annual operating,
maintenance and monitoring of the facility and monitoring systems.

What impact is this decision package intended to have on service delivery and program
outcomes, and over what period of time?

Financial solvency of the post-closure care plan.

How would the use of these funds be evaluated? What specific outcome or performance
measures would be used to assess the effectiveness of this program?




AGENCY NAME: Department of Health and Environmental Control
AGENCY CODE: - 1040 34

FORM B — PROGRAM REVISION REQUEST

DECISION PACKAGE | 5078 |
Provide the decision package number issued by the PBF system (“Governor’s Request”).

Trme Hazardous Waste and Above Ground Storage Tanks

Provide a brief, descriptive title for this request,

AMOUNT | $750,000 |
What is the net change in requested appropriations for FY 2015-16? This amount should
correspond to the decision package’s total in PBF across all funding sources.

ENABLING AUTHORITY

What state or federal statutory, regulatory, and/or administrative authority established
this program? Is this decision package prompted by the establishment of or a revision to
that authority?

Mark “X” for all that apply:

(Base Adjustment) Allocation of statewide employee benefits.

(Base Adjustment) Realignment within existing programs and lines.

(Base Adjustment) Restructuring of agency programs — requires pre-approval.
Change in cost of providing current services to existing program audience.
Change in case load / enroliment under existing program guidelines.
Non-mandated change in eligibility / enrollment for existing program.
Non-mandated program change in service levels or areas.

Proposed establishment of a new program or initiative.

Loss of federal or other external financial support for existing program.

X | Exhaustion of fund balances previously used to support program.

FACTORS ASSOCIATED
WITH THE REQUEST

| Sites requiring remediation,

RECIPIENTS OF FUNDS

What individuals or entities would receive these funds (contractors, vendors, grantees,
individual beneficiaries, etc.)? How would these funds be allocated — using an existing
formula, through a competitive process, based upon predetermined eligibility criteria?
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RELATED REQUEST{S)

4344

Is this decision package associated with other decision packages requested by your
agency or other agencies this year? Is it associated with a specific capital or non-
recurring request?

MATCHING FUNDS

N/A

Would these funds be matched by federal, institutional, philanthropic, or other
resources? If so, identify the source, amount, and terms of the match requirement.

FUNDING
ALTERNATIVES

N/A

What other possible funding sources were considered? Could this request be met in
whole or in part with the use of other resources, including fund balances? If so, please
comment on the sustainability of such an approach.

SUMMARY

This funding request addresses operations, maintenance and monitoring activities at
hazardous waste sites. Most of the costs associated with remediation of these sites are
highly dependent upon variables such as repairs and replacement parties, offsite
disposal facility acceptance fees and surcharges, transportation fuel costs, change in
leachate concentrations and waste generation rates.

We are requesting $500,000 recurring funds for the Hazardous Waste Contingency Fund
for the Brewer site.

Above Ground Storage Tanks.

There are currently 169 petroleum releases from unregulated AST's that are not
covered. While most have Responsible Parties, it is probable that 62 of these sites will
default resulting in $7.4M onetime cost to the state. We are not requesting full funding
at this time, but want the General Assemble to be aware of the possible liability and
suggest a restricted recurring line of $250,000.

Provide a summary of the rationale for the decision package. Why has it been
requested? How specifically would the requested funds be used? If the request is
related to information security or information technology, explain its relationship to the
agency’s security or technology plan.
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AGENCY NANME: Department of Health and Environmental Control
AGENCY. CODE: J040 34

METHOD OF
CALCULATION

FUTURE IMPACT

PRIORITIZATION

How was the amount of the request calculated? What factors could cause deviations
between the request and the amount that could ultimately be required in order to
perform the underlying work?

Other items for awareness.
Dry Cleaning Sites.
The dry cleaner fund is underfunded by $202M. Just to clean up Tier | and Tier lI sites
every year it takes:
$1,843,706 over 10 years

$921,853 over 20 years

$614,568 over 30 years
Still leaving 294 Tier 1l sites.
Currently, 1% of the 6% charged for dry cleaning services supports the cleanup fund.
The remaining 5% goes directly to the General Fund. We would ask that the First
$1,843,706 of the service charge go to the cleanup fund for the next 10 years. This will
require a statutory change.

Mining Bonds

Currently, the mining statue allow for a $10,000 bond. The liability for closure is not
covered sufficiently. We will request a statutory change to allow a $15,000 bond.
Funding will provide additional resources for the remediation efforts

Will the state incur any maintenance-of-effort or other obligations by adopting this
decision package? What impact will there be on future capital and/or operating
budgets if this request is or is not honored? Has a source of any such funds been
identified and/or obtained by your agency?

N/A

If no or insufficient new funds are available in order to meet this need, how would the
agency prefer to proceed? By using fund balances, generating new revenue, cutting
other programs, or deferring action on this request in FY 2015-167
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While most have Responsible Parties, it is probable that 62 of these sites will default.
These funds are requested to help offset the resulting $7.4 M in onetime cost to the

state.
INTENDED IMPACT
What impact is this decision package intended to have on service delivery and program
outcomes, and over what period of time?
Were adequate fund balances available to cover defaulting facilities.
PROGRAM
EVALUATION

How would the use of these funds be evaluated? What specific outcome or performance
measures would be used to assess the effectiveness of this program?
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AGENCY. NAME: Department of Health and Environmental Control
AGENCY CODE: 1040 34

FORM C — CAPITAL OR NON-RECURRING APPROPRIATION REQUEST

DECISION PACKAGE | 4392

Provide the decision package number issued by the PBF system (“Governor’s Request”).

TITLE | Information Technology Infra-Structure

Provide a brief, descriptive title for this request.

AMOUNT | $18,405,550

How much is requested for this project in FY 2015-16?

BUDGET PROGRAM | I.  Administration

Identify the associated budget program(s) by name and budget section.

Electronic Health Record - $3,950,000

SC DHEC currently utilizes a hybrid electronic and paper based service delivery record
system. This includes the patient medical record for clinical services and the
management information system for WIC services. In addition the electronic system for
demographics, appointment scheduling and other tracking and reporting mechanisms is
not compatible with the federal requirements for an electronic health record system.

At the present time, SC DHEC estimates approximately 1,300 clinical, administrative,
and nutritional users for the EHR application after deployment. These users are in 65
locations (clinics + central office) across the state. These users provide services in clinic
and community settings. Users consist primarily of nursing and nutrition staff. Numbers
may fluctuate during the terms of the contract.

The safety of our patients can be markedly improved by the appropriate use of
automated systems of communication, reminders and clinical practice standards. To
continue providing the highest standard of care, we must purchase a reliable
SumMmARY comprehensive and integrated software system for implementation of an EHR. The
system selected must interface with internal agency systems, as well as external
systems.

The vision is for the entire system to be paperless, integrated, stable and legally
compliant, plus provide sensible work/patient flow. We are seeking to establish a
partnership with an EHR organization familiar/experienced with Public Health service
delivery and capable of:

» Enhanced electronic charting-menu of important categories of patient
information (i.e.: problem list, medication list, chart review, preventive service
flow sheets, physical exam diagrams, family history, medical history, social
history, etc.)

¢ Single entry data points and multiple locations for critical information (i.e.
allergies, vital signs, anthropometrics, diagnosis and medications, etc.)

= Templates with easy entry of information in a consistent format (i.e.
customizable flow sheets)
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o Electronic prescription prescribing including patient ability to select and
maintain preferred pharmacy

e Electronic referral and linkage capabilities
Clinical decision support-drug interactions embedded in system; system should
include parameters to aid in clinical decision process to include
contraindications, precautions, etc.

e Clinical management guidelines

e MAR which encompasses agency drug formularies with ability to manage drug
inventory

e Embedded knowledge sources for patient education/counseling

= Llinkage to agency standing medical orders

e-Permitting - $7,210,000

DHEC has developed an RFP for eServe, an electronic business {eBusiness) system. The
purchased system will have an external citizen portal for health and environment
permits (application and status), enforcement (incident initiation, completed actions),
and online account management. eServe will also have an internal interface for agency
users and administrators. eServe will operate on multiple platforms, including mobiles
devices. Revenue Producing — eServe will facilitate the online collection of regulatory
fees, including permit applications, renewals, and enforcement. Cost Reduction —
Services currently performed manually by agency staff will be automated in the eServe
system. Customers will utilize the external portal to complete and submit applications.
They will also use the system to track the status of their applications. in addition,
customers will be able to enter incidents and complaints online, thereby reducing the
staff currently allocated to responding to telephone and other inquiries. In addition,
staff currently using paper forms to complete inspections in the field, then submitting
the completed paper forms to administrative personnel to enter into the current
system, will instead utilize mobile devices with an interface allowing the inspectors to
enter all inspection data via that device while on-site. Productivity Enhancement — With
many agency personnel utilizing the eServe system, all data will be maintained in one
database and will be accessible by users needing access. All program areas will move
from the processing of paper forms and applications to the web-based electronic
system. Manual entry of data will be significantly reduced. Legal Mandate — The agency
must follow state and federal regulations and statutes in performing its duties. eServe
will facilitate agency adherence to these regulations. Vendor Support Increase —In the
initial five years of installation, it will be necessary to fund support of the system from
the vendor. It is anticipated that the amount of support needed, and therefore the cost,
will be reduced each subsequent to the initial installation. State Support Increase — No
additional state support is anticipated. Equipment Replacement — The existing servers
have been operational for more than 10 years. It is anticipated that new equipment will
be needed to support the eServe eBusiness system. To fully utilize the mobile device
support, it is anticipated that mobile devices will need to be purchased for agency staff
performing onsite inspections, etc. User workstations may also need to be replaced.
Normal Growth in System Usage — It is anticipated that most agency staff will use the
eServe system. New Information Requirement — Additional functionality beyond the
capacity of the current system is necessary to meet data reporting requirements to
various federal systems. eServe will improve the collection and reporting of company
and facility environmental data as well as improve the quality of the data uploaded to
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federal systems. Security Requirement — eServe will adhere to the most current security
guidelines, ensuring protection of company, facility, environmental, and health data.
Reliability/Accuracy Enhancements — All company, facility, and person data related to
permits, incidents, etc., needs to be maintained in one database and accessible by all
program areas. Where applicable, the data needs to be accessible to the citizens of
South Carolina. With the extended phase-in of the current environmental system, data
for some companies/facilities is contained in multiple records, thereby necessitating
intensive queries to obtain all data regarding a particular company or facility. Since
there was not an automatically enforced process of creating new companies and/or
ensuring that any additions were made to the existing record for a company, multiple

| entries are present in the existing database. The eServe system will implement an

automated process for selecting a company record to which data will be added. User
permissions for critical functions like company creation, etc., will be restricted. Uniform
State System — No standard state system exists for the functionality required.
Training/Education — Agency IT personnel will need to be trained by the eServe vendor.
Depending on the vendor and technology implementation selected, the IT personnel
will need to be trained on configuring the system modules, modifying the source or
configuration files for the system, and maintaining the system. In addition, agency
personnel will need to be trained on the use of the eServe system.

Data Governance - $2,490,500

SC DHEC seeks to select and deploy a Master Data Management (MDM) solution along
with consulting services to assist with the configuration, installation, and
implementation of the system. Services to include assistance with the development of
Data Governance framework and structure, policies and processes, and workflows
within the agency organization to ensure long term sustainability. The end goal is to
develop and implement an information management strategy to ensure data
management of the agency's transactional systems, leverage that data to ensure
strategic initiatives and compliance with federal and state regulatory laws, and create
Single Source of Truth (SSOT) or golden record from reconciled sources.

Vital Records - $2,349,500

SC DHEC seeks to purchase an upgraded Statewide Electronic Vital Records System to
replace the system initially purchased in FY 2003 and establish a 5 year maintenance
contract. The current maintenance contract on the existing system expired in November
of 2013 and the Vital Records management team has determined that continued use,
maintenance and upgrade of the existing system is counter-productive since many new
technologies have been developed since the initial purchase that will allow the Vital
Records program to better meet the needs of the users of this system. Some of these
advances in the area of mobile accessible applications, integration with other systems
such as medical records and funeral home software, system redundancy, fully-web-
based systems and Modifiable-off-the-Shelf software will allow the program to operate
a more customer friendly and flexible system that can be centrally managed, integrated
with other systems (such as the agency imaging system, customer queuing system and
credit card processing system) and modified by internal staff through the graphical user
interface to accommodate new data collection and reporting requirements that occur
on a regular basis due to federal and state requirements as well as the requirements of
our user base. This system will replicate all the existing system'’s functionality that
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automates all aspects of the registration, certification, accounting, searching and
statistical process for every type of vital record (births, deaths, marriages, divorces, fetal
deaths and induced termination of pregnancies). This system will run in every county
health department with Vital Records onsite service (approximately 40), every
delivering hospital in the state (approximately 60), over 500 funeral hames, all Coroner
and Medical Examiner’s offices (46) and physician practices (approximately 500).
Currently there are 975 locations using the system with approximately 2,000 users. In
fiscal year 2012 approximately 695,000 copies of certifications were issued through this
system. The number of South Carolina events that are registered in the system ina
given year is approximately 55,000 births, 35,000 deaths, 40,000 marriages, 15,000
divorces, 600 fetal deaths and 8,000 induced terminations of pregnancy (ITOP). This
replacement system will also replicate and enhance the current system’s ability to
integrate with federal systems such as the Electronic Verification of Vital Events and SSA
Online Verification System as well as streamline the process of providing data extracts
to fulfill contractual obligations with our state and federal partners such as the National
Center for Health Statistics, Social Security Administration, Department of Social
Services, Election Commission, Department of Motor Vehicles, Office of Research and
Statistics and many others.

Steton Replacement- $980,000

SC DHEC wishes to replace the hosted solution to facilitate the inspections of health
facilities statewide. The system should be a completely hosted system in a certified and
secured data center with ability of mobile application, web browser, and client
capabilities that can be used to interface with the hosted system. The system runs in a
disconnected or connected mode.

Prescription Monitoring Program Replacement - $1,425,550

SC DHEC is issuing an RFP to recruit a vendor to service our Prescription Monitoring
Program (PMP). The PMP to be operated by DHEC’s Bureau of Drug Control (BDC). The
PMP will collect dispensing info from outpatient pharmacies as well as practitioners for
schedule II-IV controlled substances. The information will be submitted to the BDC in
electronic format although a waiver may be granted to a dispenser that is unable to
submit prescription info by electronic means. Federal state and local law enforcement
agencies, pharmacists, practitioners, and boards that license practitioners will be able to
request info from the PMP. DHEC believes that drug diversion cases involving deception,
doctor shopping and drug trafficking will be more effectively identified, investigated and
prosecuted criminally and or administratively. The program will enable DHEC to identify
drug diversion and drug abuse situations earlier, identify prescribing trends, reduce
investigation time, and enhance a practitioner’s decision process in prescribing a drug
therapy and decrease health care fraud, thus: 1. Reducing inappropriate and
unwarranted prescribing and subsequent diversion of abuse drugs; 2. Reducing the time
and effort required by law enforcement and regulatory investigators to assess the
merits of possible drug diversion cases; and 3. Educating physicians, pharmacists,
policymakers and the public about the existence and extent of diversion, scams, and the
drugs most likely to be diverted by individuals.

Provide a summary of the project and explain why it is necessary. If the request is
related to information security or information technology, explain its relationship to the
agency’s security or technology plan.
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RELATED REQUEST(S)

N/A

Is this decision package associated with other decision packages requested by your
agency or other agencies this year? Is it associated with a specific capital or non-
recurring request?

MATCHING FUNDS

As the projects develop, federal funds may be available to support. However, federal
funds have not been approved at this point.

Would these funds be matched by federal, institutional, philanthropic, or other
resources? If so, identify the source and amount.

FUNDING
ALTERNATIVES

N/A

What other possible funding sources were considered?

LONG-TERM PLANNING
AND SUSTAINABILITY

These requests are in various stages of the State IT Approval Requests.

What other funds have already been invested in this project (source/type, amount,
timeframe)? Will other capital and/or operating funds for this project be requested in
the future? If so, how much, and in which fiscal years? Has a source for those funds
been identified/secured?

OTHER APPROVALS

State IT Approval Requests.

What approvals have already been obtained? Are there additional approvals thot must
be secured in order for the project to succeed? (institutional board, JBRC, BCB, etc.)




AGENCY NAME: Department of Health and Environmental Control
AGENCY CaDE: J040 m 34

FORM D — PROVISO REVISION REQUEST

NUMBER [ 34.24 |
Cite the proviso according to the renumbered list for FY 2015-16 (or mark “NEW”).

TiTLE l DHEC: Health Licensing Monetary Penalties |
Provide the title from the FY 2014-15 Appropriations Act or suggest a short title for any
new request,

BupGeT PROGRAM | I1.F.3 Health Care Standards — Facility Licensing |
Identify the associated budget program(s) by name and budget section.

DEciSiON PACKAGE | N/A |
Is this request associated with a decision package you have submitted for FY 2015-16? If
so, cite it here.

REQUESTED ACTION | Amen |
Choose from: Add, Delete, Amend, or Codify.

OTHER AGENCIES | None

AFFECTED
Which other agencies would be affected by the recommended action? How?
Proviso allows the agency to retain the first $50,000 from civil monetary penalties
collected during the fiscal year.

SUMMARY

Summarize the existing proviso. If requesting a new proviso, describe the current state
of affairs without it.
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The agency has changed the name of the division from Division of Health Licensing
(DHL) to Bureau of Health Facilities Licensing (BHFL) and is updating language reflecting
that change.

EXPLANATION
Explain the need for your requested action. For deletion requests due to recent
codification, please identify SC Code section where language now appears.
None

FISCAL IMPACT

Provide estimates of any fiscal impacts associated with this proviso, whether for state,
federal, or other funds. Explain the method of calculation.
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AGENCY CODE: J040 34

Form D — PROVISO REVISION REQUEST

NUMBER [ 34.25 |
Cite the proviso according to the renumbered list for FY 2015-16 (or mark “NEW”).

TiTLE [ DHEC: Health Facility Monetary Penalties |
Provide the title from the FY 2014-15 Appropriations Act or suggest a short title for any
new request.

BUDGET PROGRAM [ 11.E.2 Health Care Standards- Facility/Services Development ‘
Identify the associated budget program(s) by name and budget section.

DECISION PACKAGE | None |
Is this request associated with a decision package you have submitted for FY 2015-167 If

so, cite it here.

RequesTED ACTION | Amend |
Choose from: Add, Delete, Amend, or Codify.

OTHER AGENCIES None

AFFECTED
Which other agencies would be affected by the recommended action? How?
This proviso allows the agency to retain the first $100,000 of civil monetary penalties
collected during the fiscal year. The proviso also establishes specific guidance related to
nursing home staffing.

SUMMARY

Summarize the existing proviso. If requesting a new proviso, describe the current state
of affairs without it.
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The agency has changed the name of the Bureau of Health Facilities and Services
Development (BHF) to the Division of Construction/Fire & Life Safety (DCFLS). The
changes update the proviso with the new name.

EXPLANATION
Explain the need for your requested action. For deletion requests due to recent
codification, please identify SC Code section where language now appears.
None

FiscaL IMPACT

“Provide estimates of any fiscal impacts associated with this proviso, whether for state,
federal, or other funds. Explain the method of calculation.
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ForM D — PROVISO REVISION REQUEST

NUMBER [ 34.40 )
Cite the proviso according to the renumbered list for FY 2015-16 {or mark “NEW”).

TImE I DHEC: Abstinence Education Contract J
Provide the title from the FY 2014-15 Appropriations Act or suggest a short title for any
new request.

BUDGET PROGRAM I I. E.2 Maternal/Infant Health |

Identify the associated budget program(s) by name and budget section.

DecisioN PACKAGE | None B
Is this request associated with a decision package you have submitted for FY 2015-16? If

so, cite it here.

RequESTED AcTioN | Delete ]
Choose from: Add, Delete, Amend, or Codify.

OTHER AGENCIES None

AFFECTED
Which other agencies would be affected by the recommended action? How?
The existing proviso states that Abstinence Education funds received through the Title
V, Section 510 federal program should be awarded through a competitive bidding
process.

SUMMARY

Summarize the existing proviso. If requesting a new proviso, describe the current state
of affairs without it.



AGENCY NAME: Department of Health and Environmental Control
AGENCY CODE: J040 34

[ The agency is required to use competitive bidding process per the state procurement
process if it does not have a specific exemption. The agency does not have specific
exemption, so the proviso is not needed in order to ensure a competitive bidding

process.

EXPLANATION
Explain the need for your requested action. For deletion requests due to recent
codification, please identify SC Code section where language now appears.
None

FISCAL IMPACT

Provide estimates of any fiscal impacts associated with this proviso, whether for state,
federal, or other funds. Explain the method of calculation.

D-8



AGENCY NAME: Department of Health and Environmental Control
Acency CODE: J040 34

PROPOSED
PROVISO TEXT

Paste FY 2014-15 text above, then bold and underline insertions and strikethrough
deletions. For new proviso requests, enter requested text above.

D-9



AGENCY NAME: Department of Health and Environmental Control
AGENCY CODE: J040 34

Form D — PrROVISO REVISION REQUEST

NUMBER [ 34.45 ]
Cite the proviso according to the renumbered list for FY 2015-16 (or mark “NE w”).

Time [ DHEC: Tuberculosis Outbreak |
Provide the title from the FY 2014-15 Appropriations Act or suggest a short title for any
new request.

BUDGET PROGRAM | 11.E.1 Family Health — Infectious Disease ]

Identify the associated budget program(s) by name and budget section.

DECISION PACKAGE | None |
Is this request associated with a decision package you have submitted for FY 2015-167 If

so, cite it here.

REQUESTED AcTioN | Amend |
Choose from: Add, Delete, Amend, or Codify.

OTHER AGENCIES None
AFFECTED

Which other agencies would be affected by the recommended action? How?

This provigb sets notification procedures upon discovery of a Tuberculosis outbreak.

SUMMARY

Summarize the existing proviso. If requesting a new proviso, describe the current state
of affairs without it.

D-10



AGENCY NAME: Department of Health and Environmental Control
AGENCY CODE: 1040 34

FORM D — PROVISO REVISION REQUEST

NumBer | 34.46 |
Cite the proviso according to the renumbered list for FY 2015-16 (or mark “NE w”).
TITLE [ DHEC: Abstinence Until Marriage Emerging Programs ’
Provide the title from the FY 2014-15 Appropriations Act or suggest a short title for any
new request.

BUDGET PROGRAM | I1.E.3 Family Health — Maternal/infant Health ‘
Identify the associated budget program(s} by name and budget section.

DECISION PACKAGE | None |
Is this request associated with a decision package you have submitted for FY 2015-167 If

so, cite it here.

REQUESTED ACTION | Delete ]
Choose from: Add, Delete, Amend, or Codify.

OTHER AGENCIES None

AFFECTED
Which other agencies would be affected by the recommended action? How?
This proviso specifies requirements for awarding funds for Abstinence Education funds
appropriated by the state for emerging programs.

SUMMARY

Summarize the existing proviso. If requesting a new proviso, describe the current state
of affairs without it.

D-13



AGENCY NAME: Department of Health and Environmental Control

jodo a4

AGENCY, CODE:

The agency is recommending deletion of the proviso. Recommendation is for the
General Assembly to directly appropriate funds to the appropriate source based on
their intentions. Direct appropriations would be the best way to simplify the process.
The current proviso related process to distribute the funds requires a considerable
amount of time, effort and resources while not meeting the legislative intentions.

EXPLANATION
Explain the need for your reguested action. For deletion requests due to recent
codification, please identify SC Code section where language now appears.
None

FiscaL IMPACT

Provide estimates of any fiscal impacts associated with this proviso, whether for state,
federal, or other funds. Explain the method of caiculation.

D-14



- AGENCY NAME: Department of Health and Environmental Control
AGENCY CODE: | 1040 34

PROPOSED
PrROVISO TEXT




AGENCY NAME: Department of Health d Environmental Control
AGENCY CODE: J040 34

Paste FY 2014-15 text above, then bold and underline insertions and strikethrough
deletions. For new proviso requests, enter requested text above.
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AGENCY NAME: Department of Health and Environmental Control
AGENCY CODE: JO40 34

FORM D — PROVISO REVISION REQUEST

NUMBER | 34.47 ]
Cite the proviso according to the renumbered list for FY 2015-16 (or mark “NEW”).

TITLE ]lHEC: Abstinence Until Marriage Evidence-Based Programs Funding I
Provide the title from the FY 2014-15 Appropriations Act or suggest a short title for any
new request.

BUDGET PROGRAM | II.E.3 Family Health — Maternal/Infant Health |
Identify the associated budget program(s) by name and budget section.

DECisioN PACKAGE | None |
Is this request associated with a decision package you have submitted for FY 2015-16? If

50, cite it here.

REQUESTED ACTION | Delete |
Choose from: Add, Delete, Amend, or Codify.

OTHER AGENCIES | None

AFFECTED
Which other agencies would be affected by the recommended action? How?
[ This proviso specifies requirements for awarding funds for Abstinence Education funds
appropriated by the state for evidence based programs funding.
SUMMARY

Summarize the existing proviso. If requesting a new proviso, describe the current state
of affairs without it.

D-17



. AGENCY NAME: Department of Health and Environmental Control
AGENcY CODE: J040 34

The agency is recommending deletion of the proviso. Recommendation is for the
General Assembly to directly appropriate funds to the appropriate source based on
their intentions. Direct appropriations would be the best way to simplify the process.
The current proviso related process to distribute the funds requires a considerable
amount of time, effort and resources while not meeting the legislative intentions.

EXPLANATION
Explain the need for your requested action. For deletion requests due to recent
codification, please identify SC Code section where language now appears.
None

FiscaL IMPaCT

Provide estimates of any fiscal impacts associated with this proviso, whether for state,
federal, or other funds. Explain the method of calculation.

D-18




Department of Health and Environmental Control

AGENCY NAME:
AGENCY CODE:

040 a4

PROPOSED
PRroviso TEXT

Paste FY 2014-15 text above, then bold and underline insertions and strikethrough
deletions. For new proviso requests, enter requested text above.

D-19
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I McKINLEY, COOPER @& CO., LLP

l CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
Suite 225 C P A
555 Nerth Pleasantburg Drive

GREENVILLE, SOUTH CAROLINA 29607-2191
The CPA. Never Underestimats The Value™

(864) 233-1800 FAX (864) 232-6971
Members
Toni R. McKlinley American Institute of
Robert C. Cooper Centified Public Accountants
$.C. Association of
Centified Public Accountants

Independent Auditor's Report

Kestrel Horizons, LLC
Trustee of the Pinewood Site Custodial Trust
Greenville, South Carolina

We have audited the accompanying balance sheet of Pinewood Site Custodial Trust as of
December 31, 2004, and the related statements of revenue and expenses and cash flows for
the year then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Trust's
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based
on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement.
An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion,

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of Pinewood Site Custodial Trust as of December 31, 2004, and the
changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the year then ended, in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

e K?M&?,, /5&%@%— -3 f’gée, Lep

January 21, 2005




PINEWOOD SITE CUSTODIAL TRUST

BALANCE SHEET
DECEMBER 31, 2004

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Prepaid expenses
Total current assets

Total assets

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable

Total current liabilities
NET ASSETS
Total net assets

Total liabilities and net assets

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

-

2,870,045
1,727,898
149,479

4,747,422

4,747 422

186,624

186,624

4,560,798

4,560,798

4,747,422




PINEWOOD SITE CUSTODIAL TRUST

STATEMENT OF REVENUE AND EXPENSES
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004

REVENUE
Investment income

Total revenue

EXPENSES
Facility closure
Cell closure
i Remediation
' Site operations
Management and general
Unrealized depreciation on investment

Total expenses
DECREASE IN NET ASSETS
- NET ASSETS, beginning of year

NET ASSETS, end of year

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

23

$

83,909

83,909

139,532
1,871,004
603,996
3,100,270
543,183
15,852

6,673,837

(6,589,928)

11,150,726

$

4,560,798




PINEWOQOD SITE CUSTODIAL TRUST

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Decrease in net assets $ (6,589,928}
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets
to net cash provided by operating activities
Changes in deferred and accrued amounts

Decrease in prepaid expenses 32,800
increase in accounts payable 150,066
Net cash provided by operating activities (6,407,062)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from disposal of investments 9,212,950
Net cash provided by investing activities 9,212,950
Net increase in cash 2,805,888
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, beginning of year 64,157
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, end of year B+ 2,870,045

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

-4~




PINEWOOD SITE CUSTODIAL TRUST

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2004

NOTE 1 —SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Nature of Operations

The Pinewood Site Custodial Trust was established by the bankruptey court on December 24,
2003 to effect closure and post-closure of the Pinewood Site, a hazardous waste landfill and
treatment facility located in Sumter County, South Carolina, and formerly owned and operated by
Safety-Kleen (Pinewood, Inc.). This trust fund will be treated as Qualified Setlement Funds under
Sec. 1.468B of the income Tax Regulations. DHEC is the sole beneficiary of the fund. Kestrel
Horizons, LLC has been appointed and approved by DHEC as the Trustee.

Basis of Accounting

The financial statements are prepared using the accrual basis of accounting whereby revenues are
recognized when earned and expenditures are recorded when incurred.

Use of Estimates

The presentation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and
assumptions related to the reported amounts of assets and liabiiities and the disclosure of
contingent essets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of
revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results may ultimately differ from those
estimates. ,

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Trustee considers all holdings of highly liquid investments with original maturities of three
months or less and investments in money market funds to be cash equivalents.

Income Tax

The fund is a Qualified Settliement Fund under Sec. 1.468B of the Income Tax Regulations, and all
income Is excludible from gross income under Sec. 115(1) of the Internal Revenue Code.

Investments

Investments are composed of bonds with readily determinable fair values. All investments are
valued at their fair values on the balance sheet. Unrealized gains and losses are included in the
statement of revenue and expenses.




NOTE 2 — INVESTMENTS

Investments as of December 31, 2004, are summarized as follows:

Carrying
Cost Fair Value Value
Fixed income $ 1743751 $ 1.727.898 $ 1727898

$ 1,743,751 $ 1,727,898 $ 1,727,898

The following schedule summarizes the investment return and its classification in the statement of
revenue and expenses for the year ended December 31 , 2004:

Interest income $ 83,909
Unrealized losses (15,852)
Total investment return $ 68,057

NOTE 3 — CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK

The Trust maintains cash balances at one financial institution. Accounts at an institution are
insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) up to $100,000. At December 31,
2004, the Trust had no cash balances on deposit in excess of insured limits.




PINEWOOD SITE CUSTODIAL TRUST
AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2005
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] McKINLEY, COOPER & CO., LLP

1} CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
Suite 225 ( : P A
555 North Pleasantburg Drive

GREENVILLE, SOUTH CAROLINA 29607-2191
= The CPA. Never Underestimate The Valye®

(864) 233-1800 FAX (864) 232-6971
* Members
Tont R, McKinley American Instilute of
Robert C. Cooper Certified Public Accountants
8.C. Association of
Centified Public Accountants

Independent Auditor's Report

Kestrel Horizons, LLC
Trustee of the Pinewood Site Custodial Trust
Greenville, South Carolina

We have audited the accompanying balance sheet of Pinewood Site Custodial Trust as of
December 31, 2005, and the related statements of revenue and expenses and cash flows for
the year then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Trust's
management. OQur responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based
on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement.
An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements. An audit alsc includes assessing the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of Pinewood Site Custodial Trust as of December 31, 2005, and the
changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the year then ended, in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

”gﬂd&?,,é”ﬂa, S, 20p

January 12, 2006




PINEWOOD SITE CUSTODIAL TRUST

BALANCE SHEET
DECEMBER 31, 2005

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Prepaid expenses
Total current assets

Total assets

CURRENT LIABILITIES
;’ Accounts payable
) Retalnage payable
Total current liabilities
NET ASSETS

Total net assets

Total liabilities and net assets

The accompanying noles are an integral part of these financial statements.

| -

580,732
94,389

685,121

685,121

423,017
187,557

610,574

74,547

74,547

685,121




PINEWOOD SITE CUSTODIAL TRUST

STATEMENT OF REVENUE AND EXPENSES
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2005

REVENUE
AlG annuity $ 2,018,623
Transfer by DHEC from Environmental Impairment Trust Fund 1,750,000
Investment income 85,869
Gain on investment 15,853
Total revenue 3,870,345
EXPENSES
Facility closure 1,367,242
Cell closure 2,296,001
Remediation 952,174
Site operations 2,957,779
Management and general 783,400
Total expenses 8,356,596
DECREASE IN NET ASSETS (4,486,251)
NET ASSETS, beginning of year 4,560,798
NET ASSETS, end of year $ 74,547

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statemenits.

-3-
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PINEWOQOD SITE CUSTODIAL TRUST

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2005

CASH FLLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Decrease in net assets $ (4,488,251)
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets
1o net cash provided by operating activities
Changes in deferred and accrued amounts

Decrease in prepaid expenses 55,090
Increase in accounts payable . 236,393
Increase in retainage payable 187,557
Net cash provided by operating activities (4,007,211)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from disposal of investments 1,727,898
Net cash provided by investing actlvities 1,727,898
Net decrease in cash (2,279,313)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, beginning of year 2,870,045
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, end of year $ 590,732

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements,

-4-




PINEWOOD SITE CUSTODIAL TRUST

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2005

NOTE 1 ~SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Nature of Operations

The Pinewood Site Custodial Trust was established by the bankruptcy court on December 24,
2003 to effect closure and post-closure of the Pinewood Site, a hazardous waste landfill and
treatment facility located in Sumter County, South Carolina, and formerly owned and operated by
Safety-Kleen (Pinewood, Inc.). This trust fund will be treated as Qualified Settlement Funds under
Sec. 1.468B of the Income Tax Regulations. DHEC is the sole beneficiary of the fund. Kestrel
Horizons, LLC has been appointed and approved by DHEC as the Trustee.

Basis of Accounting

The financial statements are prepared using the accrual basis of accounting whereby revenues are
recognized when earned and expenditures are recorded when incurred.

Use of Estimates

The presentation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and
assumptions related to the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of
revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual resuits may ultimately differ from those
estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Trustee considers all haldings of highly liquid investments with original maturities of three
months or less and invesiments in money market funds to be cash equivalents,

Income Tax

The fund is a Qualified Settlement Fund under Sec. 1.488B of the Income Tax Regulations, and all
income is excludible from gross income under Sec. 1 15(1) of the Internal Revenue Code.




——1

o

NOTE 2 — INVESTMENTS

The following schedule summarizes the investment return and its classification in the statement of
revenue and expenses for the year ended December 31, 2005:

Interest income $ 85,869
Gains 15,853
Total investment return $ 101,722

NOTE 3 — CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK

The Trust maintains cash balances in one checking account at one financial institution. Accounts
at an institution are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) up to $100,000.
At times during the year, balances may exceed insured amounts. At December 31, 2005, the
Trust had no cash balances on deposit in excess of insured limits.
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I McKINLEY, COOPER ® CO., LLP

1] CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
Suite 225
555 North Pleasantburg Drive
GREENVILLE, SOUTH CAROLINA 29607-2191

The CPA. Never Underestimate The Valys™

(864) 233-1800 FAX (864) 232-6971

Members
Toni R. McKinley American Institule of
Robert C. Cooper Certified Public Accountants

S.C. Association of
Certified Public Accountants

Independent Auditor's Report

Kestrel Horizons, LLC
Trustee of the Pinewood Site Custedial Trust
Greenville, South Carolina

We have audited the accompanying balance sheet of Pinewood Site Custodial Trust as of
December 31, 2006, and the related statements of revenue and expenses and cash flows for
the year then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Trust's
management. Our responsibility is_to éXxpress an opinion on these financial statements based
on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. -
An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures

in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of Pinewood Site Custodial Trust as of December 31, 2006, and the
changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the year then ended, in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

7#:7(’4&7,,'6«/«— fo, Lip

January 12, 2007




PINEWOOD SITE CUSTODIAL TRUST

BALANCE SHEET
DECEMBER 31, 2006

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents

Tofal current assets
Total assets
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Total current liabilities
NET ASSETS
Total net assets

Total liabilities and net assets

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial sla tements.

2,315,384

2,315,384

2,315,384

591,947

591,947

1,723,437

1,723,437

2,315,384




PINEWOQD SITE CUSTODIAL TRUST

STATEMENT OF REVENUE AND EXPENSES
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2006

REVENUE
AlG annuity
Transfer by DHEC from Environmental Impairment Trust Fund

Investment income

Total revenue
EXPENSES
Facility closure
Cell closure
Remediation
Site operations
Management and general
Total expenses
INCREASE IN NET ASSETS
NET ASSETS, beginning of year

NET ASSETS, end of year

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial Statements,

$

$

2,029,625
3,222,986
96,531

5,349,142

435,917
326,377
87,952
2,272,172
577,834
3,700,252
1,648,890
74,547

1,723,437




PINEWOOD SIiTE CUSTODIAL TRUST

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2006

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Increase in net assets $ 1,648,890
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets
lo net cash provided by operating activities
Changes in deferred and accrued amounts

Decrease in prepaid expenses 94,389

Increase in accounts payable 168,930
Decrease in retainage payable (187,557)

Net cash provided by operating activities _ 1,724,652

Net increase in cash ] 1,724,652
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, beginning of year 590,732
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, end of year $ 2,315,384

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

-4~
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PINEWOOD SITE CUSTODIAL TRUST

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2006

NOTE 1 —-SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Nature of Operations

The Pinewood Site Custodial Trust was established by the bankruptcy court on December 24,
2003 to effect closure and post-closure of the Pinewood Site, a hazardous waste landfill and
treatment facility located in Sumter County, South Carolina, and formerly owned and operated by
Safety-Kleen (Pinewood, Inc.). This trust fund will be treated as Qualified Settlement Funds under
Sec. 1.468B of the Income Tax Regulations. DHEC is the sole beneficiary of the fund. Kestrel
Horizons, LLC has been appointed and approved by DHEC as the Trustee.

Basis of Accounting

The financial statements are prepared using the accrual basis of accounting whereby revenues are
recognized when earned and expenditures are recorded when incurred.

Use of Estimates

The presentation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and
assumptions related to the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of
revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results may ultimately differ from those
estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Trustee considers all holdings of highly liquid investments with original maturities of three
months or less and investments in money market funds to be cash equivalents.

Income Tax

The fund is a Qualified Settlement Fund under Sec. 1.468B of the Income Tax Regulations, and all
income is excludible from gross income under Sec. 115(1) of the Internal Revenue Code.




NOTE 2 —~ INVESTMENTS

The following schedule summarizes the investment return and its classification in the statement of
revenue and expenses for the year ended December 31, 2006:

Interest income $ 96,531

Total investment return $ - 96,531

NOTE 3 — CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK

The Trust maintains cash balances in one checking account at one financial institution. Accounts
at an institution are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) up to $100,000.
At times during the year, balances may exceed insured amounts. At December 31, 20086, the
Trust had no cash balances on deposit in excess of insured limits.
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Kestre| Horizons, LLC

Trustee of Pinewood Site Custodial Trust
January 11, 2008

Page Two

Our comments are based upon conditions noted during our audit and are not intended to be all-
inclusive. They are submitted to you as constructive suggestions to assist you in strengthening
controls and procedures and are not intended to reflect on the honesty or integrity of any
employee. ' '

This report is intended salely for the information and use of the Board of Directors, management,
and others within the Trust and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other
than these specified parties,

We appreciate the opportunity to present these comments and recommendations for your
consideration, and are prepared to discuss them further at your conveniencs and provide any
implementation assistance for changes or improvements yoy may require.

Respectfully submitted,

ﬁkﬁ’m&?ﬁ ospin— 4 s, 127
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Independent Auditor's Report

Kestrel Horizons, LLC
Trustee of Pinewood Site Custodial Trust
Greenville, South Carolina

We have audited the accompanying balance sheet of Pinewood Site Custodial Trust as of
December 31, 2007, and the related statements of revenue and expenses and cash flows for
the year then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Trust's
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based
on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the Unijted
States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement.
An audit includes examining, on a fest basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion,

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of Pinewood Site Custodial Trust as of December 31, 2007, and the
changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the year then ended, in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

January 11, 2008




PINEWOOD SITE CUSTODIAL TRUST

BALANCE SHEET
DECEMBER 31, 2007

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable

Total current assets
Total assets
CURRENT LIABILITIES
g Accounts payable
Total current liabilities
NET ASSETS
Total net assets

Total liabilities and net assets

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial stafements.

-2

802,038
18,920

920,859

920,958

538,226

539,226

381,733

381,733

920,959




PINEWOOD SITE CUSTODIAL TRUST

STATEMENT OF REVENUE AND EXPENSES
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2007

REVENUE
AlG Annuity
Investment income
Total revenue
EXPENSES
Post closure
Facility closure
Remediation
Site operations
Management and general
Total expenses
DECREASE IN NET ASSETS
NET ASSETS, beginning of year

NET ASSETS, end of year

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial staternients.

-3-

1,230,325
109,531

1,339,856

203,402
12,561
9,000
1,894,908
561,689

2,681,560

(1,341,704)

1,723,437

381,733




PINEWQOD SITE CUSTODIAL TRUST

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2007

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Decrease in net assets
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets
to net cash provided by operating activities
Changes in deferred and accrued amounts

$  (1,341,704)

Increase in accounts receivable (18,920)

Decrease in accounts payable (52,721)

Net cash provided by operating activities (1,413,345)

Net decrease in cash (1,413,345)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, beginning of year 2,315,384
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, end of year $ 902,039

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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PINEWOOD SITE CUSTODIAL TRUST

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2007

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Nature of Operations

The Pinewood Site Custodial Trust was established by the bankruptey court on December 24,
2003 to effect closure and post-closure of the Pinewood Site, a hazardous waste landfill and
treatment facility located in Sumter County, South Carolina, and formerly owned and operated by
Safety-Kleen (Pinewood, Inc.). This trust fund will be treated as Qualified Settlement Funds under
Sec. 1.468B of the Income Tax Regulations. DHEC is the sole beneficiary of the fund. Kestrel
Horizons, LLC has been appointed and approved by DHEC as the Trustee.

Basis of Accounting

The financial statements are prepared using the accrual basis of accounting whereby revenues are
recognized when earned and expenditures are recorded when incurred.

Use of Estimates

The presentation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and
assumptions related to the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of
revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results may ultimately differ from those
estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Trustee considers afl holdings of highly fiquid investments with original maturities of three
maonths or less and investments in money market funds to be cash equivalents.

Income Tax

The fund is a Qualified Settlement Fund under Sec. 1.468B of the Income Tax Regulations, and all
income is excludible from gross income under Sec. 115(1) of the Internal Revenue Code.




NOTE 2 — INVESTMENTS

The following schedule summarizes the investment return and its classification in the statement of
revenue and expenses for the year ended December 31, 2007:

Interest income $ 109,531

Total investment return $ 109,531

NOTE 3 — CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK

The Trust maintains cash balances in one checking account at one financial institution. Accounts
at an institution are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) up to $100,000.
At times during the year, balances may exceed insured amounts. At December 31, 2007, the
Trust had no cash balances on deposit in excess of insured limits,




PINEWOOD SITE CUSTODIAL TRUST
AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2008




PINEWOOD SITE CUSTODIAL TRUST

TABLE OF CONTENTS
PAGE
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 1
BALANCE SHEET 2
STATEMENT OF REVENUE AND EXPENSES 3
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 4
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 5-8




T _] McKINLEY, COOPER & CO.,LLP

l l CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
— CPA
555 North Pleasanrburg Drive

GREENVILLE, SOUTH CAROLINA 7-2191
.-—___.__LEN’ 650 The CPA_ Rever Underestimate The Vatue™

(864) 233-1800 FAX (864) 232-6971

Members
Toni R. McKinley Ametican Instinue of
Robert C. Cooper ; Certified Public Accoumtants

S.C. Association of
Certified Public Accountants

Independent Auditor's Report

Kestrel Horizons, LLC
Trustee of the Pinewood Site Custodial Trust
Greenville, South Carolina

We have audited the accompanying balance sheet of Pinewood Site Custodial Trust as of
December 31, 2008, and the related statements of revenue and expenses and cash flows for
the year then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Trust's
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based
on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement.
An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of Pinewood Site Custodial Trust as of December 31, 2008, and the
changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the year then ended, in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

ﬂe?(’«c&?,,w g6, 0P

January 23, 2009
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PINEWOOD SITE CUSTODIAL TRUST

BALANCE SHEET
DECEMBER 31, 2008
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,080,726
Prepaid insurance ' 83,701
Total current assets 1,164,427
Total agssts $ 1,164,427
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 3 519,391
Total current liabilities 519,391
NET ASSETS 645,036
Total net assets 645,036
Total liabilitles and net assets $ 1,164,427

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial Statements.
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PINEWOOD SITE CUSTODIAL TRUST

STATEMENT OF REVENUE AND EXPENSES
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2008

REVENUE
AlG Annuity
Transfer by DHEC from
Environmental Impairment Trust Fund
Investment income

Total revenue
EXPENSES
Post-closure
Facility closure
Remediation
Site operations
Management and general
Total expenses
INCREASE IN NET ASSETS
NET ASSETS, beginning of year

NET ASSETS, end of year

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

e

1,208,532

1,637,051
26,169

2,771,752

389,126
25,254
13,249

1,467,565

613,255

2,508,449

263,303

381,733

$

645,036




PINEWOOD SITE CUSTODIAL TRUST

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2008

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Increase in net assats

3 263,303
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets
to net cash provided by operating activities
Changes in deferred and accrued amounts
Decrease in accounts receivable 18,920
Decrease in accounts payable (19,835)
Increass in prepaid expenses (83,701)
Net cash provided by operating activities 178,687
NET INCREASE IN CASH 178,687
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENT. 8, beginning of year 902,039
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, end of year $ 1,080,726

The accompanying notes are an infegral part of these financial statements.




PINEWOOD SITE CUSTODIAL TRUST

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2008

NOTE 1 -~ SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Nature of Operations

The Pinewood Site Custodial Trust was established by the bankruptcy court on December 24,
2003 to effect closure and post-closure of the Pinewood Site, a hazardous waste landfill and
treatment facility located in Sumter County, South Carolina, and formerly owned and operated by
Safety-Kleen (Pinewood, Inc.). This trust fund will be treated as Qualified Settlement Funds under
Sec. 1.468B of the Income Tax Regulations. DHEC is the sole beneficiary of the fund. Kestrel
Horizons, LLC has been appointed and approved by DHEC as the Trustee.

Basis of Accounting

The financial statements are prepared using the accrual basis of accounting whereby revenues are
recognized when eamed and expenditures are recorded when incurred.

Use of Estimates

revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results may ultimately differ from those
estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Trustee considers all. holdings of highly liquid investments with original maturities of three
months or less and investments in Money market funds to be cash equivalents.

Income Tax

NOTE 2 — INVESTMENTS

The following schedule summarizes the investment return and its classification in the statement of
revenue and expenses for the year ended December 31, 2008: -

Interest income $ 26,169

Total investment retum $ 26,169




NOTE 3 - CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK

The Trust maintains cash balances in one checking account at one financial institution. Accounts
at an institution are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) up to $250,000
until December 31, 2009. At times during the year, balances may exceed insured amounts. At
December 31, 2008, the Trust had no cash balances on deposit in excess of insured limits.
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independent Auditor's Report

Kestrel Horizons, LLC
Trustee of the Pinewood Site Custodial Trust
Greenville, South Carolina

We have audited the accompanying balance sheet of Pinewood Site Custodial Trust as of
December 31, 2009, and the related statements of revenue and expenses and cash flows for
the year then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Trusts
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based
on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement.
An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of Pinewood Site Custodial Trust as of December 31, 2009, and the
changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the year then ended, in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

%ﬁfm@?? oopinm &G, said

January 25, 2010




PINEWOOD SITE CUSTODIAL TRUST

BALANCE SHEET
DECEMBER 31, 2009

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Prepaid insurance

Total current assats
Total assets
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Total current liabilities
NET ASSETS
Total net assets

Total liabilities and net assets

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial stalements.

772,543
90,932

863,475

863,475

940,879

940,879

(77,404)

(77,404)

863,475




PINEWOOD SITE CUSTODIAL TRUST

STATEMENT OF REVENUE AND EXPENSES
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2009

REVENUE
AlG Annuity
Transfer by DHEC from
Environmental Impairment Trust Fund
Investment income

Total revenue
EXPENSES
Post-closure improvement project
Site operations
Management and general
Total expenses
DECREASE IN NET ASSETS
NET ASSETS, beginning of year

NET ASSETS, end of year

The accompanying notes are an integral pad of these financial statements.

1,156,238

7,020,000
4,251

8,180,489

5,291,426
2,364,469
1,247,034

8,902,929

(722,440)

645,035

$

(77,404)




PINEWOOD SITE CUSTODIAL TRUST

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2009

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Decrease in net assets
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assels
to net cash provided by operating activities
Changes in deferred and accrued amounts
Increase in accounts payable
Increase in prepaid expenses

Net cash used by operating activities
NET DECREASE IN CASH
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, beginning of year

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, end of year

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial stalements.

(722,440)

421,488
(7,231)

(308,183)

(308,183)

1,080,726

772,543




PINEWOOD SITE CUSTODIAL TRUST

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2009 '

NOTE 1~ SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Nature of Operations

The Pinewood Site Custodial Trust was established by the bankruptcy court on December 24,
2003 to effect closure and post-closure of the Pinewoced Site, a hazardous waste landfill and
treatment facility located in Sumter County, South Carolina, and formerly owned and operated by
Safety-Kleen (Pinewood, Inc.). This trust fund will be treated as Qualified Settlement Funds under
Sec. 1.468B of the Income Tax Regulations, DHEC is the sole beneficiary of the fund. Kestrel
Horizons, LLC has been appointed and approved by DHEC as the Trustee.

Basis of Accounting

The financial statements are prepared using the accrual basis of accounting whereby revenues are
recognized when earned and expenditures are recorded when incurred.

Use of Estimates

The presentation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and
assumptions related to the reported amounts of assets and liabilites and the disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of
revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results may ultimately differ from those
estimates. :

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Trustee considers all holdings of highly liquid investments with original maturities of three
months or less and investments in money market funds to be cash equivalents.

Income Tax

The fund is a Qualified Settlement Fund under Sec. 1.468B of the Income Tax Regulations, and all
income is excludible from gross income under Sec. 115(1) of the Internal Revenue Code.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The carrying values of cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, accounts payable,
accrued liabilities, and deposits approximate fair value because of the terms and relative short
maturity of financial instruments. The carrying values, which are the fair value of investments, are
based on values provided by an extemal investment manager or comparison to quoted market
values.

NOTE 2 — INVESTMENTS

The following schedule summarizes the investment return and its classification in the statement of
revenue and expenses for the year ended December 31, 2009:

5




Interest income $ 4,251

Total investment return 3 4,251

NOTE 3 - FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

The accounting standards establish a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to valuation
techniques used to measure fair value. The hierarchy gives the highest priority to unadjusted

Level 1 —financial instruments with quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 — financial instruments with valuations based on quoted prices in markets that are not
active or for which all significant inputs are observable, either directly or indirectly.

Level 3 - financial instruments that are not actively traded on a market exchange and require using
significant unobservable inputs in determining fair value. The inputs into the determination of fair
value require significant judgment or estimation by the investment manager. '

The following tables summarize the valuation of the Trust's financial assets and liabilities
measured at fair value as of December 31, 2009, based on the level of input utilized to measure
fair value:

Fair value measurements at December 31, 2009 using
Quoted prices in

active markets for  Quoted prices Significant
identical assets  for similar assets unobservable
Fair value at and liabilities and liabilities inputs
Assets measured at fair value December 31, 2009 _(Level 1 inputs) __(Level 2 inputs) (Level 3 inputs)
Money Market Funds $ 7248637 3% 724837 % - 3 -
Total assets at fair value 5 724,637 % 724637 % - % .

Prices for money market funds, U.S. Treasury bonds and notes, equities, and preferred stock and
bond funds are readily available in the active markets in which those securities are traded, and the
resulting fair values are shown in the ‘Level 1 input” column.

NOTE 4 — CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK

The Trust maintains cash balances in one checking account at one financial institution. Accounts
at an institution are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) up to $250,000
untit December 31, 2010. At times during the year, balances may exceed insured amounts, At
December 31, 2009, the Trust had no cash balances on deposit in excess of insured limits.

NOTE 5 - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Subsequent everits have been evaluated through January 25, 2010 which is the date the financial
statements were available to be issued.
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Independent Auditor's Report

Kestrel Horizons, LLC
Trustee of the Pinewood Site Custodial Trust
Greenville, South Carolina

We have audited the accompanying balance sheet of Pinewood Site Custodial Trust as of
December 31, 2010, and the related statements of revenue and expenses and cash flows for
the year then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Trust's
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based
on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement.
An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of Pinewood Site Custodial Trust as of December 31, 2010, and the
changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the year then ended, in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America,

McKinley, Cooper ¥ C, LLC

January 17, 2011




PINEWOOD SITE CUSTODIAL TRUST

BALANCE SHEET
DECEMBER 31, 2010

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Prepaid insurance
Total current assets
Total assets
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Total current liabilities
NET ASSETS

Total net assets

Total liabilities and net assets

The accompanyiny notes are an integral part of these financial slatements.

1,007,215
72,364

1,079,579

1,079,579

590,418

590,418

489,161

489,161

1,079,579




PINEWOOD SITE CUSTODIAL TRUST

STATEMENT OF REVENUE AND EXPENSES
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010

REVENUE
AIG Annuity
Transfer by DHEC from
Environmental Impairment Trust Fund
Investment income

Total revenue
EXPENSES
Post-closure improvement project
Site operations
Management and general
Total expenses
INCREASE IN NET ASSETS
NET ASSETS, beginning of year

NET ASSETS, end of year

The accompanying notes are an integral pant of these financial statements.

1,125,403

4,405,000
524

5,530,027

1,376,454
2,248,100
1,339,808

4,964,362

566,565

(77,404)

$

489,161




PINEWOOD SITE CUSTODIAL TRUST

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Increase in net assets $ 566,565
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets
to net cash provided by operating activities
Changes in deferred and accrued amounts

Decrease in prepaid expenses 18,568

Decrease in accounts payable (350,461)

Net cash provided by operating activities 234,672

NET INCREASE IN CASH 234,672
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, beginning of year 772,543
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, end of year 3 1,007,215

The accompanying noles are an integral part of lhese financial statements.




PINEWOOD SITE CUSTODIAL TRUST

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2010

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIE

Nature of Operations

The Pinewood Site Custodial Trust was established by the bankruptcy court on December 24,
2003 to effect closure and post-closure of the Pinewood Site, a hazardous waste landfill and
treatment facility located in Sumter County, South Carolina, and formerly owned and operated by
Safety-Kleen (Pinewood, Inc.). This trust fund will be treated as Qualified Settlement Funds under
Sec. 1.468B of the Income Tax Regulations. DHEC is the sole beneficiary of the fund. Kestrel
Horizons, LLC has been appoainted and approved by DHEC as the Trustee.

Basis of Accounting

The financial statements are prepared using the accrual basis of accounting whereby revenues are
recognized when eamed and expenditures are recorded when incurred.

Use of Estimates

The presentation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and
assumptions related to the reported amounts of assets and liabilties and the disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of
revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results may ultimately differ from those
estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Trustee considers all holdings of highly liquid investments with original maturities of three
months or less and investments in money market funds to be cash equivalents.

Income Tax

The fund is a Qualified Settlement Fund under Sec. 1.468B of the Income Tax Regulations, and all
income is excludible from gross income under Sec. 115(1) of the Intermal Revenue Code.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The carrying values of cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, accounts payable,
accrued liabilities, and deposits approximate fair value because of the terms and relative short
maturity of financial instruments. The carrying values, which are the fair value of investments, are
based on values provided by an external investment manager or comparison to gquoted market
values.

NOTE 2 — INVESTMENTS

The following schedule summarizes the investment return and its classification in the statement of
revenue and expenses for the year ended December 31, 2010:
R ’




524
524

Interest income
Total investment retum

R

NOTE 3 - FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

The accounting standards establish a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to valuation
techniques used to measure fair value. The hierarchy gives the highest priority to unadjusted
quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1 measurements) and the
lowest priority to measurements involving significant unobservable inputs (Level 3 measurements).
The three levels of the fair value hierarchy are as follows:

Level 1 — financial instruments with quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 — financial instruments with valuations based on quoted prices in markets that are not
active or for which all significant inputs are observable, either directly or indirectly.

Level 3 — financial instruments that are not actively traded on a market exchange and require using
significant unobservable inputs in determining fair value. The inputs into the determination of fair
value require significant judgment or estimation by the investment manager.

The following tables summarize the valuation of the Trust's financial assets and liabilities
measured at fair value as of December 31, 2010, based on the level of input utilized to measure
fair value:

Fair value measurements at December 31, 2010 using
Quoted prices in '

active markets for  Quoted prices Significant
identical assets for similar assets unobservable
Fair value at and liabilities and liabilities inputs
Assets measured at fair value December 31, 2010 (Level 1 inputs) (Level 2 inputs) (Level 3 inputs)
Money Market Funds 3 899,212 $ 999212 % - 5 -
Total assets at fair value $ 989,212 § 993,212 % - % -

Prices for money market funds, U.S. Treasury bonds and notes, equities, and preferred stock and
bond funds are readily available in the active markets in which those securities are traded, and the
resulting fair values are shown in the “Level 1 input” column.

NOTE 4 —~ CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK

The Trust maintains cash balances in one checking account at one financial institution. Accounts
at an institution are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) up to $250,000
until December 31, 2011. At times during the year, balances may exceed insured amounts.

NOTE 5 — SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Subsequent events have been evaluated through January 27, 2011, which is the date the financial
statements were available to be issued.
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Independent Auditor's Report

Kestrel Horizons, LL.C
Trustee of the Pinewood Site Custodial Trust
Greenville, South Carolina

We have audited the accompanying balance sheet of Pinewood Site Custodial Trust as of
December 31, 2011, and the related statements of revenue and expenses and cash flows for
the year then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Trust's
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on

our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial. statements are free of material misstatement.
An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of Pinewood Site Custodial Trust as of December 31, 2011, and the
changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the year then ended, in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

McKinless, Cooper ¥ Co., LLC

January 23, 2012




PINEWOOD SITE CUSTODIAL TRUST

BALANCE SHEET
DECEMBER 31, 2011

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Prepaid insurance
Total current assets
Total assets
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Total current liabilities
NET ASSETS
Total net assets

Total ifabilities and net assets

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

2,688
92,725

102,313

102,313

261,020

261,020

(158,707)

(158,707)

102,313




PINEWOOD SITE CUSTODIAL TRUST

STATEMENT OF REVENUE AND EXPENSES
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011

REVENUE
AlG Annuity
Transfer by DHEC from
Environmental Impairment Trust Fund

fnvestment income
Total revenue
EXPENSES
Post-closure improvement project
Site operations
Management and general
Total expenses
DECREASEIN NET ASSETS
NET ASSETS, beginning of year

NET ASSETS, end of year

The accompanying notes are an inlegral part of these financial stalements.

1,151,045

3,075,000
97

4,226,142

1,062,274
2,640,570
1,181,166

4,874,010

(547 ,868)

489,161

3

(158,707)




PINEWOOD SITE CUSTODIAL TRUST

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Decrease in net assets
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets
to net cash provided by operating activities
Changes in deferred and accrued amounts
Increase in prepaid expenses
Decrease in accounts payable

Net cash used by operating activities
NET DECREASE IN CASH
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, beginning of year

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, end of year

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

(647,868)

(20,361)
(329,398)

(997,627)

(997,627)

1,007,215

9,588




PINEWOOD SITE CUSTODIAL TRUST

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2011

NOTE 1 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Nature of Operations

The Pinewood Site Custodial Trust was established by the bankruptcy court on December 24,
2003 fo effect closure and post-closure of the Pinewood Site, a hazardous waste landfill and
treatment facility located in Sumter County, South Carolina, and formerly owned and operated by
Safety-Kleen (Pinewood, Inc.). This trust fund will be treated as Qualified Settlement Funds under
Sec. 1.468B of the Income Tax Regulations. DHEC is the sole beneficiary of the fund. Kestrel
Horizons, LLC has been appointed and approved by DHEC as the Trustee,

Basis of Accounting

The financial statements are prepared using the accrual basis of accounting whereby revenues are
recognized when eamed and expenditures are recorded when incurred.

Use of Estimates

The presentation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and
assumptions related to the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of
revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual resuits may ultimately differ from those

estimates.
Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Trustee considers all holdings of highly liquid investments with original maturities of three
months or less and investments in money market funds to be cash equivalents.

Income Tax

The fund is a Qualified Settlement Fund under Sec. 1.468B of the Income Tax Regulations, and all
income is excludible from gross income under Sec. 115(1) of the Internal Revenue Code.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The carrying values of cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, accounts payable,
accrued liabilities, and deposits approximate fair value because of the terms and relative short
maturity of financial instruments. The carrying values, which are the fair value of investments, are
based on values provided by an external investment manager or comparison to quoted market

values.




NOTE 2 ~ INVESTMENTS

The following schedule summarizes the investment return and its classification in the statement of
revenue and expenses far the year ended December 31, 2011:

Interest income 5 g7
Total investment return $ a7

NOTE 3 — FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

The accounting standards establish a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to valuation
techniques used to measure fair value. The hierarchy gives the highest priority to unadjusted
quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1 measurements) and the
lowest priority to measurements involving significant unobservable inputs (Level 3 measurements).
The three levels of the fair value hierarchy are as follows:

Level 1 ~financial instruments with quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 — financial instruments with valuations based on quoted prices in markets that are not
active or for which all significant inputs are observable, either directly or indirectly.

Level 3 — financial instruments that are not actively traded on a market exchange and require using
significant unobservable inputs in determining fair value, The inputs into the determination of fair
value require significant judgment or estimation by the investment manager.

The following tables summarize the valuation of the Trust's financial assets and liabilities
measured at fair value as of December 31, 2011, based on the level of input utilized to measure

fair value:

Fair value measurements at December 31, 2011 using
Quoted prices in :

active markets for  Quoted prices Significant
identical assets  for similar assets unobservable
Fair value at and liabilities and liabilities inputs
Assets measured at fair value December 31, 2011 (Level 1 inputs) (Level 2inputs)  (Level 3 inputs)
Money Market Funds $ 6,208 % 6,208 $ - 8 -
Total assets at fair value $ 6,208 & 6,208 & - 3

Prices for money market funds, U.S. Treasury bonds and notes, equities, and preferred stock and
bond funds are readily available in the active markets in which those securities are traded, and the

resulting fair values are shown in the “Level 1 input” column.

NOTE 4 - CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK

The Trust maintains cash balances in one checking acceunt at one financial institution.  Accounts
at an institution are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) up to $250,000
until December 31, 2012, Attimes during the year, balances may exceed insured amounts.

6




NOTE 5 — SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Subsequent events have been evaluated through January 25, 2012, which is the date the financial
statements were available to be issued.
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PINEWQOD SITE CUSTODIAL TRUST

BALANCE SHEET
DECEMBER 31, 2012

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Prepaid expense

Total current assets
Total assets
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Total current liabilities
NET ASSETS
Total net assets

Total liabilities and net assets

Tha accompanying nolas are an integral part of these financial stataments.

3

653,420
223,366

876,786

876,786

$

773424

773,424

103,362

103,362

876,786




FPINEWOOD SITE CUSTODIAL TRUST

STATEMENT OF REVENUE AND EXPENSES
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012

REVENUE
AlG Annuity S 1,085,540
Transfer by DHEC fram
Environmental Impairment Trust Fund 9,000,000
investment Income 360
Total revenue 10,085,900
EXPENSES
Post-closure improvement project 5,856,653
Site operations 2,743,704
Management and general 1,223,474
Total expenses 9,823,831
INCREASE IN NET ASSETS 262,068
NET ASSETS, beginning of year (158,707)
NET ASSETS, end of year $ 103,362

Thz accompanying notss are an integral part of thess financial statamanls.

A
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PINEWOOD SITE CUSTODIAL TRUST

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2012

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Increase in net assets

Adjustments o reconcile change in net assets
td net cash provided by operating aclivities
Changes in deferred and accrued amounls
increase in prepaid expenses
Increase in accounts payable

Net cash provided by operating activities

NET INCREASE IN CASH

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, beginning of year

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, end of year

The accoinpanying noles are an integral part of these financial staiements

5

S 262,069

(130,841)
512,404

643,832
—_ V9,092

643,832

9,588

$ 653,420




PINEWOOD SITE CUSTODIAL TRUST

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2012

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Nature of Operations

The Pinewcod Site Custodial Trust was established by the bankruptcy court on December 24,
2003, to effect closure and post-closure of the Pinewood Site, a hazardous waste landfill and
treatment facility located in Sumter County, South Carolina, and formerly owned and operated by
Safety-Kleen (Pinewood, Inc.). This trust fund will be treated as Qualified Setlement Funds under
Sec. 1.4688B of the [ncome Tax Regulations. DHEC is the sole beneficiary of the fund., Kestrel
Horizons, LLC has been appointed and approved by DHEC as the Trustee.

Basis of Accounting

The financial statements are prepared using the accrual basis of accounting whereby revenues are
recognized when earned and expenditures are recorded when incurred.

Use of Estimates

The presentation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and
assumptions related to the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of
revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results may ultimately differ from those
estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Trustee considers all holdings of highly liquid investments with original maturities of three
months or less and investments in money market funds to be cash equivalents.

Income Tax

The fund is a Qualified Settlement Fund under Sec. 1.468B of the Income Tax Regulations, and all
income is excludible from gross income under Sec. 115(1) of the Internal Revenue Code.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The carrying values of cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, accounts payable,
accrued liabilities, and deposits approximate fair value because of the terms and relative short
maturity of financial instruments. The carrying values, which are the fair value of investments, are
based on values provided by an external investment manager or comparison to quoted market
values.




NOTE 2 — INVESTMENTS

The following schedule summarizes the investment return and its classification in the statement of
revenue and expenses for the year ended December 31, 2012;

Interest income 3 360
Total investment return $ 360

NOTE 3 - FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

ASC 820, Fair Value Measurernents and Disclosures, establishes a single authoritative definition
of fair value, establishes a consistent framework for measuring fair value in accordance with
GAAP, and expands disclosure requirements about fair value measurements. The
pronouncement defines fair value and establishes a framework for measuring fair value that
includes a hierarchy that categorizes and prioritizes the sources used to measure and disclose
fair value. Fair value is defined as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date
(an exit price). The hierarchy is broken down into three levels based on inputs that market
participants would use in valuing the asset or liability based on market data obtained from
sources independent of the Trust as follows:

Level 1 - Inputs to the valuation methodology are unadjusted quoted prices for identical assets
or liabilities in active markets that the Trust has the ability to access.

Level 2 - Inputs to the valuation methodology include:

- Quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets;

- Quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in inactive markets;

- inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability;

- inputs that are derived principally from or corroborated by observable market data by
correlation or by other means.

If the asset or liability has a specified (contractual) term, the level 2 input must be
observable for substantially the full term of the asset or liability,

Level 3 - Inputs to the valuation methodology are unobservable and significant to the fair value
measurement,

Inputs refer broadly to the assumptions that market participants use to make valuation decisions,
including assumptions about risk. Inputs may include price information, volatility statistics,
specific and broad credit data, liquidity statistics and other factors.

- The following table summarizes the valuation of the Trust's financial assets and liabilities
measured at fair value as of December 31, 2012, based on level of input used to measure fair
value:

Level 1 Total
Money Market funds $ 644422 5 B44,422




Prices for money market funds, U.S. Treasury bonds and notes, equities, and preferred stock and
bond funds are readily available in the active markets in which those securities are traded, and the
resulting fair values are shown in the "Level 1 input” column.

NOTE 4 — CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK

The Trust maintains cash balances in one checking account at one financial institution. Accounts
at an institution are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) up to $250,000.
At times during the year, balances may exceed insured amounts.

NOTE 5 — SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Subsequent events have been evaluated through January 30, 2013, which is the date the financial
statements were available to be issued.
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ERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

Independent Auditor's Report

Kestrel Horizons, LLC
Trustee of the Pinewood Site Custodial Trust
Greenville, South Carolina

We have audited the accompanying balance sheet of Pinewood Site Custodial Trust as of December 31, 2013,

and the related statements of revenue and expenses and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related
notes to the financial statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those

standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion.,

Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial

position of Pinewood Site Custodial Trust as of December 31, 2013, and the changes in its net assets and its

cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America.

Mekinley;, Cooptr & Ce., LLC

February 4, 2014 Members
American Institute of Certified Public Accountants

S.C. Association of Certified Public Accountants

CPA) Suite 225 555 North Pleasantburg Drive  Greenville, South Caroling 29607-2191
America Counls on CPAS (864) 233-1B00 Fax (864) 232-6971 www.mckinleycooper.com
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PINEWOOD SITE CUSTODIAL TRUST

BALANCE SHEET
DECEMBER 31, 2013

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Prepaid expense

Total current assets
Total assets
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Total current liabilities
NET ASSETS
Total net assets

Total liabilities and net assets

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

1,437,260
143,483

1,580,743

1,580,743

441,665

441,665

1,139,078

1,139,078

1,580,743
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PINEWOOD SITE CUSTODIAL TRUST

STATEMENT OF REVENUE AND EXPENSES
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013

REVENUE
AIG Annuity
Transfer by DHEC from
Environmental Impairment Trust Fund
Investment income

Total revenue
EXPENSES
Post-closure improvement project
Site operations
Management and general
Total expenses
INCREASE IN NET ASSETS

NET ASSETS, beginning of year

NET ASSETS, end of year

The accompanying notes are my integral parl of these financial statements.

1,055,109

8,475,000
99

9,530,208

3,254,189
3,563,336
1,676,967

6,494,492

1,035,716

103,362

1,139,078
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PINEWOOD SITE CUSTODIAL TRUST

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
YCAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013

CASH FL.OWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Increase in net assets
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets
to pet cash provided by operating activities
Changes in deferred and accrued amounts
Decrease in prepaid expenses
Decrease in accounts payable

Net cash provided by operating activities
NET INCREASE IN CASH
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, beginning of year

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, end of year

The accompanying notes are an integral pari of these financial statenients.

1,035,716

79,883
(331,759)

783,840

783,840

653,420

1,437,260
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PINEWOOD SITE CUSTODIAL TRUST

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2013

NOTE 1- SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Nature of Operations

The Pinewood Site Custodial Trust was established by the bankruptcy court on December 24, 2003, to effect
closure and post-closure of the Pinewood Site, a hazardous waste landfill and treatment facility Jocated in
Sumter County, South Carolina, and formerly owned and operated by Safety-Kleen (Pinewood, Inc.). This
trust fund will be treated as Qualified Settlement Funds-under Sec. 1.468B of the Income Tax Regulations.
DHEC is the sole beneficiary of the fund. Kestrel Horizons, LLC has been appointed and approved by
DHEC as the Trustee.

Basis of Accounting

The financial statemenls are prepared using the accrual basis of accounting whereby revenues are
recognized when earned and expenditures are recorded when incurred.

Use of Estimates

The presentation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions related to the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the
financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.
Actual results may ultimately differ from those estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Trustee considers all holdings of highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or
less and investments in money market funds to be cash equivalents.

Income Tax

The fund is a Qualified Settlement Fund under Sec. 1.468B of the Income Tax Regulations, and all income is
excludible from gross income under Sec. 115(1) of the Internal Revenue Code.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments
The carrying values of cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, accounts payable, accrued liabilities,
and deposits approximate fair value because of the terms and relative short maturity of financial

instruments. The carrying values, which are the fair value of investments, are based on values provided by
an external investment manager or comparison to quoted market values,

NOTE 2 - INVESTMENTS

The following schedule summarizes the investment return and its classification in the statement of revenue
and expenses for the year ended December 31, 2013:
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Total investment return $ 99

Interest income

NOTE 3 ~ FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

ASC 820, Fair Value Meastrements and Disclosures, establishes a single authoritative definition of fair value,
establishes a consistent framework for measuring fair value in accordance with GAAP, and expands
disclosure requirements about fair value measurements. The pronouncement defines fair value and
establishes a framework for measuring fair value that includes a hierarchy that categorizes and
prioritizes the sources used to measure and disclose fair value. Fair value is defined as the price that
would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date (an exit price). The hierarchy is broken down into three levels
based on inputs that market participants would use in valuing the asset or liability based on market data
obtained from sources independent of the Trust as follows: :

Level 1- Inputs to the valuation methodology are unadjusted quoted prices for identical assets or
liabilities in active markets that the Trust has the ability to access.

Level 2 - Inputs to the valuation methodology include:

- quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets;

- quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in inactive markets;

- inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the assei or liability;

- inputs that are derived principally from or corroborated by observable market data by
correlation or by other means,

If the asset or liability has a specified (contractual) term, the level 2 input must be
observable for substantially the full term of the asset or liability.

Level 3 - Inputs to the valuation methodology are unobservable and significant to the fair value
measurement,

Inputs refer broadly to the assumptions that market participants use to make valuation decisions,
including assumptions about risk. Inputs may include price information, volatility statistics, specific and
broad credit data, liquidity statistics and other factors.

The following table summarizes the valuation of the Trust's financial assets and liabilities measured at
fair value as of December 31, 2013, based on level of input used to measure fair value:

Level 1 Total
Money Market funds $ 1430675 % 1,430,675

Prices for money market funds, U.S. Treasury bonds and notes, equities, and preferred stock and bond
funds are readily available in the active markets in which those securities are traded, and the resulting fair
values are shown in the “Level 1 input” column.

NOTE 4 - CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK

The Trust maintains cash balances in one checking account at one financial institution. Accounts at an
institution are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) up to $250,000. Af times
during the year, balances may exceed insured amounts.
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NOTE 5 - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Subsequent events have been evaluated through February 4, 2014, which is the date the financial
statements were available to be issued.
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Independent Auditor's Report

Kestrel Horizons, LLC
Trustee of the Pinewoad Site Custodial Trust
Greenville, South Carolina

We have audited the accompanying balance sheet of Pinewood Sjte Custodial Trust as of
December 31, 2012, and the related statements of revenue and expenses and cash flows for
the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for {he preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant
to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial staternents based on our audit, We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial

Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion,




Kestrel Horizons, LLC
Trustee of the Pinewood Site Custodial Trust
January 30, 2013

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of Pinewood Site Custodial Trust as of December 31, 2012, and the
changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

McKintesy, Cooer ¥ Co, LLC

January 30, 2013




Third Party Assessment of Pinewood Site

Haley & Aldrich was awarded the contract for the 3" party independent analysis of the
Pinewood site. The cost of the project is $50,000. Their report is due to DHEC in April 2015.

The 3" party independent analysis Scope of Work is as follows:

1.

Review current Site RCRA Subtitle C post-closure operations. This includes, but is not
limited to:
1.1.  The groundwater monitoring system, including location, depth, and
number of monitoring wells, sampling frequency, and sampling parameters as it
relates to the hydrogeologic system beneath and surrounding the Site;
1.2.  The leachate monitoring, collection, and treatment system;
1.3.  Site records, in both hard copy and electronic format, in the
possession of the Site Trustee and the Department;
1.4.  Environmental permits held by the Trustee for the Site;
1.5.  All other Site-wide operation and support systems.

Evaluate the efficacy of the systems referenced in section 3.2.1 to perform as designed to
detect and respond to any actual or potential environmental releases at the Site. This
includes, but is not limited to:

2.1. Actual and potential pathways through environmental media;

2.2, Actual and potential exposure routes;

2.3 Integrity of the landfill caps;

2.4, Other environmental risk factors such as sensitive populations.

Provide written findings and prioritized recommendations for any changes in the

post-closure care of the Site. This includes, but is not limited to:

3.1 Changes to the existing groundwater monitoring system necessary to ensure the
earliest detection of a release from the landfill sections;

3.2 Modifications to the existing landfill caps;

3.3, Short (1-5 years) and long-term (greater than 5 years) response action alternatives
and potentially applicable technologies to address a specific Site issue or the
entire Site; based on factors that include, but are not limited to:

a. scope, complexity and present worth cost of the recommended response action
including not only costs to construct and implement but also long-term costs to
operate and maintain;

b. degree to which response action reduces the toxicity, mobility, or volume of
the potential for or actual release;

c. degree to which response action affords short and long-term protection to
public health and the environment;

d. technical feasibility of the response action.

Conduct a review of current and projected Site expenditures for post-closure operation
and maintenance. This includes, but is not limited to:
4.1.  Review of the status of the funds currently available for Site expenditures.;



4.2.

4.3,

Projections for future expenditures associated with current post-closure operation

and maintenance of the Site;
Projections for short- and long-term expenditures for prioritized response action

recommendations.



